
Adult Protective Services (421-LIFE)   •   Cash & Food Assistance   •   Medicaid   •   Child Care Services 
Child Support Enforcement   •   Children’s Services (241-KIDS)   •   Workforce Development 

 Board of Commissioners: 
Greg Hartmann, Chris Monzel, Todd Portune 
County Administrator:  Christian Sigman  
Director:  Moira Weir 
General Information:  (513) 946-1000 
General Information TDD:  (513) 946-1295 
www.hcjfs.org  

   
222 East Central Parkway • Cincinnati, Ohio  45202 
           -      • Fax: (513) 946-2384-      
Email:HCFJS_RFP_Communications @jfs.hamilton-co.org 
 
 
 

ADDENDUM 5 
 

December 13, 2011 
 
 
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES RFP SB0111R 
 
 
 
To All Registered Providers: 
 
 
The deadline date for the answers to the questions that were asked was 
extended until December 13, 2011. 
Sorry for the inconvenience. 
 
Questions and Answers below: 
 
Question1: Page 19, Section 1.2.3:  
What have been the scores from all performance surveys for the past two years 
for your current vendor?  

Answer: 
See “Complaints Description” on attached “MonthlyReport”. 
See attached “Hamilton Surveys” PDF. 
 
Question2: Page 19, Section 1.2.3:  
What company is administering the surveys?  

Answer: 
uSPEQ® 
6951 E. Southpoint Road 
Tucson, AZ 85756, USA 
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Question3: Page 19, Section 1.2.3:  
Please provide copies of surveys and survey results. 

Answer: 
See “Complaints Description” on attached monthly report. 
See attached “Hamilton Surveys” PDF. 
 
Question4: Page 23, Section 1.3.1: 
The RFP mentions school buses. Does JFS currently require any school buses 
from your current provider?  

Answer: 
We do not.   

Question5: Page 23, Section 1.3.1: 
How many vehicles or trips are operated/provided by your current provider, and 
how 
many are brokered to third-party providers?  

Answer: 
See attached “NET Count Scheduled” for scheduled trips. 
See attached “MonthlyReport” for delivered trips. 
See attached “Trip distribution by sub” for the breakdown of trips by 
subcontractor .  

Question6: Page 23, Section 1.3.1: 
A list with the total annual number of trips performed by the provider and its third-
party 
subcontractors would be ideal. 

Answer: 
See attached “Trip distribution by sub” for the breakdown of trips by 
subcontractor. 

Question7: Page 34. Section F:  
Has JFS suspended the requests or processing /payment of any invoices 
because of provider's non-compliance with contract terms, or rules/regulations?  

Answer: 
No 

Question8: If so, please provide the reasons for suspension of processing or 
payment. 

Answer: 
N/A 
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Question9: Page 35, Section 2.7:  
Please confirm that physical abuse and sexual molestation endorsement are 
requirements of all vendors. 

Answer:  
Physical abuse and sexual molestation endorsement are requirements for 
all vendors/providers/sub-contractors. 

Question10: Please provide copies of all invoices received and paid in the past 
four months. 

Answer: 
See attached “Invoice covers” 

Question11: Please provide a copy of the current contract and any negotiated 
addendum 
to the contract. 

Answer:  
See attached “Contract” 

Question12: Please provide a list of the current approved subcontractors. 
 
Answer: 
Ride Right, Medacare, Wheels to go 

Question13: Is there any consideration on thresholds for selecting DBE firms?  

Answer: 
 No 

Question14: Or firms utilizing subcontractors that are certified DBE? 

Answer: 
 No 

Question15: Section 1.2, 8, pp. 5-6 , states “Transportation services shall be 
provided at the request and authorization of HCJFS for transportation to 
Medicaid Providers who provide services such as, but not limited to: day 
treatment, medical, dental, therapy appointments, behavioral health treatment 
and/or to a pharmacy for prescribed medication. The authorization will be 
transferred electronically and encrypted to the Provider, who shall then provide 
the service.” 
Section 1.3.2, Page 24 states, “Provider will be responsible for scheduling 
eligible consumers for transportation. A web based application will be provided 
for Providers to use, to ensure consumers who call them for services are 
authorized. 
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Please clarify whether a.) clients will schedule transportation services directly 
through the Provider’s call center and not through HCJFS; or b) Clients will 
schedule transportation through HCJFS, who will, in turn, transmit a file 
containing all scheduled trips to the Provider.  

Answer: 
Clients will schedule transportation through HCJFS, who will, in turn, 
transmit a file containing all scheduled trips to the Provider. Very rare 
circumstances may result in HCJFS authorization of trips at the time of 
delivery or shortly after.   

Question16: If the answer is B, Please explain the coordination between HCJFS 
and the provider to handle “will-call” or return trip calls and “where’s my ride” 
calls? 

Answer: 
Return trips are authorized by HCJFS at the time that the initial trip is 
authorized.  The specific timing of that return trip may be established 
ahead of time or may require the provider to be available to receive and 
respond to a pick-up request from the consumer.   

Question17: Section 1.22, A, 6, p. 15 states, “The Provider shall ensure that the 
response time for return trips, between receiving the call from the consumer and 
the vehicle arriving at the designated pick-up location, is within twenty (20) 
minutes or best proposed time by Provider.” 

Would HCJFS please revise this to read as follows, “The Provider shall ensure 
that the response time for return trips, between receiving the call from the 
consumer and the vehicle arriving at the designated pick-up location, is within 
forty (40) minutes or best proposed time by Provider.” 

Answer: 
No. We will preserve the ability to discuss this in negotiations.  

Question18: If answer to question 2 is no, will bidders receive negative scoring 
for proposing a forty (40) minute wait-time? 

Answer: 
Yes 

Question19: Section 1.2.3, A, 5, Page 19 states, When the Consumer 
Satisfaction Survey of the Provider and Contractor(s) is eighty-five percent (85%) 
or less favorable, HCJFS reserves the right to invoke a requirement for quarterly 
surveys at the Provider's expense. After the second consecutive survey with 
results below eighty-five percent (85%), the Provider may be assessed a one-
thousand dollar ($1,000.00) penalty. Recovery will be recouped through invoice 
deduction.” 
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Please provide the results of these surveys over the last two (2) years. 

Answer: 
See “Complaints Description” on attached “MonthlyReport”. 
See attached “Hamilton Surveys” PDF 

Question20: Section 1.3.1, Page 23 states that, “All vehicles used shall conform 
to, be equipped, a 2-way radio of sufficient watts to cover all Hamilton County 
and Tri State Region.” 

Will a Nextel type 2-way with direct connect, or a cell phone be accepted? 

Answer: 
We would require the prospective provider to affirm that any selected 
technology is sufficient to cover the tri-state region.   

Question21: Section 1.2.1, A, Page 14: states that there were “scheduled 
services for approximately 357,349 one way trips and delivered services for a 
total of approximately 210,914 one way trips.” 

Please confirm this means that there is a current “no-show” or cancellation rate 
of over forty (40) percent. 

Answer: 
Latest and best data is for Jan through Sept of 2011.  In that period, 265,681 
trips were scheduled and 181,950 trips were delivered.  That 32% no show 
rate is typical but could change in any future measure.   

Question22: If no to the above, please explain the gap between trips scheduled 
and trips completed. 

Answer: 
N/A 

Question23: Several items within the RFP advise proposer to redact certain 
information. Would HCJFS prefer a separate, redacted copy of our submission to 
use in response to open records requests? 

Answer: 
No. Redacted or confidential information should be rare and narrowly 
limited. 

Question24: Is there a public, bid opening for proposals in response to this RFP? 

Answer: 
 No 
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Question25: Stage 4, Page 38, If some of our permanent key staff members 
have not yet been identified, will scoring in regards to personnel qualifications be 
based on the start-up team and interim staff we propose combined with the 
qualifications we outline for permanent candidates who will be recruited upon 
contract award? 

Answer: 
Yes   

Question26: Who is the incumbent provider, and how long have they provided 
these services to HCJFS? 

Answer: 
Medical transportation Management has been providing this service since 
1/1/10. 

Question27: Are subcontractors currently utilized by the incumbent provider? 

Answer: 
Yes 

Question28: If subcontractors are utilized by existing provider, what are the 
names and contact numbers? 

Answer: 
Ride Right, Medacare, Wheels to go 
Contact information is available for each via Google 

Question29: Please provide the current rates for these services. 

Answer: 
Thirty-Four Dollars and Six Cents ($34.06) (the “Unit Rate”) per one-way 
vehicle trip per Customer (a “Trip”).   

Question30: What portion of these trips, if any is for non-ambulatory clients 
requiring lift vehicles? 

Answer: 
None. Lift vehicles are prohibited under the current contract. 

Question31: How many vehicles are being used to service this contract? How 
many Drivers are actively operating these vehicles? 

Answer: 
159 vehicles and 164 drivers and/or monitors employed. 

Question32: Please provide a list of vehicle make, model, year, and odometer 
readings for all vehicles operated under the current contract. 

Answer: 
See attached “Vehicles.” No odometer readings are provided. 
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Question33: Are wheelchair lift vehicles required?  

Answer: 
No 

Question34: If yes, to the above how many are currently being used? 

Answer: 
N/A 

Question35: Does HCJFS or the current contractor have USDOT Numbers?  

Answer:  
Unknown. This is the technical expertise that we are purchasing through 
this RFP 

Question36: Does HCJFS have a FTA or USDOT exemption for Intra-state or 
Inter-state transport of passengers?  

Answer: Unknown. This is the technical expertise that we are purchasing 
through this RFP 

Question37: If yes to the above would this be available to the contractor? 

Answer: 
Unknown.  This is the technical expertise that we are purchasing through 
this RFP 

Question38: Is the current contractor regulated through PUCO?  

Answer: 
Unknown. This is the technical expertise that we are purchasing through 
this RFP 

Question39: Section 1.1, page 4, Introduction & Purpose of the Request for 
Proposal- It is stated that you are “seeking proposals for the purchase of non-
brokerage transportation services.” Please clarify if it will be acceptable that the 
Provider is a pure transportation broker, a broker that does not own any 
transportation assets? 
Answer: 
Without parsing the definition of Broker, prospective providers are not 
required to deliver any transportation services directly.   
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Question40: Section 1.1, page 4, Introduction & Purpose of the Request for 
Proposal – In this same section you state that “HCJFS desires a single Provider 
to deliver services.” Does this mean that you expect that single provider to 
operate vehicles and employ drivers? 

Answer: 
No. It means that we expect to hold only one contract with one entity who 
is accountable for all elements of contracted service delivery either directly 
and/or through subcontracts.   

Question41: Section 1.1, page 4, Introduction & Purpose of the Request for 
Proposal- The RFP states that “if the selected Provider uses subcontracts to 
meet service delivery need…” Is it correct to assume that a pure broker can 
perform all the transportation work thru subcontractors and again is not required 
to own any vehicles or employ any drivers? 

Answer: 
That is correct. 

Question42: Section 1.2(A)(2), page 5, Scope of Service- Is it correct to assume 
that the individuals desiring or needing transportation will contact HCJFS and 
such requests will then be transmitted to the Provider to arrange transportation?  

Answer: 
Yes, but – as discussed above – the provider will need to have capacity to 
schedule in real time for pick up and return home from dialysis and similar 
prior authorized two way trips.    

Question43: Section 1.2(A) (2), page 5, Scope of Service- Will the vendor take 
reservation requests as well? 

Answer: 
No, or only in exceptionally narrow circumstances using protocols 
established well before with HCJFS. 

Question44: Section 1.2(A)(2), page 5, Scope of Service- Will HCJFS be 
determining eligibility? 

Answer: 
Yes. However we may rely upon input from the provider regarding rider 
behavior, clinical need, and appropriateness for this level of care 
transportation.   

Question45: Section 1.2 #13, page 6, Scope of Service- How are the 
transportation providers reimbursed for services rendered? 

Answer: 
See RFP, Section 2.3 Budgets, and Cost Consideration, E. Invoices 
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Question46: Section 1.2 #13, page 6, Scope of Service- Will HCJFC pay the 
claims or will the selected vendor do so? 

Answer: 
HCJFS shall pay the provider. Provider responsible to compensate 
subcontractors. 

Question47: Section 1.2 (B) (2), page 7, Scope of Service- Can the driver and 
monitor be the same person? 

Answer: 
In this circumstance, yes. The provider should be prepared to provide both 
a driver and a monitor for any trip identified by HCJFS as needing that level 
of service.   

Question48: Section 1.2 (C)(5), page 9, Scope of Service- It is stated that 
wheelchair accessible vans are not required and that the Provider’s staff is not 
expected to load or unload riders or their equipment. Based on the examples of 
the riders to be expected, children in wheelchairs are cited. How are those 
individuals in wheelchairs able to be loaded into the vehicle if a wheelchair 
accessible vehicle is not used and the driver doesn’t assist in the loading 
process? 

Answer: 
Parent, teacher, or caretaker is expected to fold and load the wheelchair.    

Question49: Section 1.2 #10, page 10, Additional requirements for Children’s 
Services NET Consumers- The samples listed of example riders mention 
wheelchair bound minors who may not ambulate. Is this population eligible for 
paralift vehicles and the other three required to transfer? 

Answer: 
No.  The rider, their parent, teacher, or caretaker is expected to fold and 
load the wheelchair.    

Question50: Section 1.2.1, page 14, Population- Could you please provide the 
following trip data: a monthly trending of NEMT completed trips by mode of 
transportation for the most recent 24 month period? 

Answer: 
See attached “MonthlyReport” for 1/10-9/11 data. 

Question51: Section 1.2.1, page 14, Population- Could you please provide the 
number of eligible members trended monthly for the most recent 24 month 
period? 

Answer: 
See attached “Monthly Eligible Member ” report. 
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Question52: Section 1.2.1, page 14, Population- Could you please provide a 
breakdown of modes of transportation for the completed trips such as 
ambulatory, wheelchair, stretcher etc. 

 
Answer: 
All trips are provided with vehicles that are not specially equipped – for 
riders that can load/be loaded without assistance from the driver/monitor – 
and are delivered by staff without the need for any medical skills or 
training.    

Question53: Section 1.2.2 #1, page 15, Service Components- Question 1 
indicates the vendor will have a toll free number available 24/7 for consumers to 
contact. Is the intent for this line to answer questions pertaining to rides that have 
been completed?    

Answer: 
Yes, or complaints, or inquiries, or crises. Trips may be delivered any hour 
of the day or night. The provider should be reliably available to customers, 
HCJFS, medical provider destinations, parents, and other stakeholders.   

Question54: Section 1.2.2 # 4, page 15, Service Components- This section 
indicates individuals will be required to transport on their own from their 
wheelchair to the vehicle. Are paralift vehicles a covered mode of transportation 
under this contract?    

Answer: 
No 

Question55: Section 1.2.2(A) (11), page 16, Service Components- If HCJFS is 
providing the Provider with all trip requests, how would the Provider be receiving 
transportation requests directly from the consumer? 

Answer: 
The provider will need to have capacity to schedule in real time for pick up 
and return home from dialysis and similar prior authorized two way trips.    

 
Question56: Section 1.2.2(A) (11), page 16, Service Components- Isn’t HCJFS 
checking eligibility and authorizing each trip? 

Answer: 
Yes 

Question57: Section 1.2.2(A) (11), page 16, Service Components- Who 
determines which medical emergency is not severe enough to warrant an 
ambulance? 

Answer: 
The provider. If the provider determines that an ambulance is needed, they 
would have an obligation to call 911.   
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Question58: Section 1.2.3, page 19, Performance and Service Feedback- If the 
vendor has an internal group who are solely dedicated to customer satisfaction 
surveys, may the vendor utilize the in-house group to perform the service 
feedback functions?   

Answer: 
No. There is not sufficient distance from the provider to avoid bias. 

Question59: Section 1.3.1, page 23, Vehicles and Equipment Requirements - 
Instead of 2-way radios, can mobile phones be used? 

Answer: 
See #20 above. 

Question60: Section, 2.3, page 29, Budget and Cost- We are a transportation 
broker and as such we would contract directly with the transportation providers. 
Would HCJFS consider alternative pricing methods such as administrative 
services only, cost-plus an administrative percentage, or risk corridors? 

Answer:  
No 

Question61: Section, 2.3, page 29, Budget and Cost- Would HCJFS consider a 
capitated arrangement where they would make monthly payments to the broker? 
These payments would be based on a capitated Per Member Per Month fee 
times the number of eligible members for the month. 

Answer:  
No 

Question62: Attachment A, Unit Rates-Should we provide a separate Unit Rate 
for ambulatory and wheelchair trips? 
Answer: 
No. We are not purchasing those type of trips.  

Question63: Attachment C, Budget Instruction- Please clarify whether all 
expense categories (all line items) should be allocated to each separate 
population group? 

Answer: 
Yes, all expense categories (all line items) should be allocated to each 
separate population group as listed on Attachment C – Budget. 

Question64: Attachment C, Budget Instruction- Page 1 cell B11 is linked to Page 
2 cell F22 – Annual Cost. Is this correct? 

Answer: 
Yes, that is correct. 
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Question65: General Question, What have HCJFS’ total NET expenditures been 
for the last two years? 

Answer: 
See attached “MonthlyReport” 

Question66: Other than the circumstances described for monitors for Children 
Services, are monitors required to at all times when there are unaccompanied 
children? 

Answer: 
No 

Question67: Will HCJFS request monitors for unaccompanied children in all 
situations as needed or will provider determine the level of need, based on 
shared rides, for monitors?  
Answer:  
The provider is obliged to provide a monitor in any case requested by 
HCJFS.  They may also provide additional monitors as they see fit.  We 
work regularly with the current provider to make sure requests are 
reasonable and that criteria are consistent.   

Question68: Page 26, Section 2.2: This section of the RFP instructs bidders to 
answer all questions in two separate and distinct responses. Could HCJFS clarify 
what this means? Does this simply mean that questions in Section 2.2.1 and 
2.2.2 should be answered apart from each other?  

Answer: 
Good question. Yes, and do please respond to each question in a clearly 
separate response rather than melding multiple responses into a longer 
mixed narrative.   

Question69: Attachment A – RFP Submission Checklist states that the due date 
Friday, January 18. Please verify that the due date is actually Friday, January 
20th at 11:00am.  

Answer: 
The actual due date is Friday, January 20th at 11:00am. 

 Question70: Page 29 says rates will be submitted as in Attachment C, but 
Attachment C does not appear to be a part of the RFP package. Would you 
please forward this document?  

Answer: 
Attachment C is located on the following websites: 
http://www.hcjfs.hamilton-co.org/RFP/rfp.htm, click on Addendum 1. 

 
 
  







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Monthly eligible members 
DEC_2010 JAN_2011 FEB_2011 MAR_2011 APR_2011 MAY_2011 JUN_2011 JUL_2011 AUG_2011 SEPT2011 OCT_2011 NOV_2011

1639 1704 1682 1807 1807 1766 1817 1793 1851 1851 1851 1851
 

Monthly eligible members 
DEC_2009 JAN_2010 FEB_2010 MAR_2010 APR_2010 MAY_2010 JUN_2010 JUL_2010 AUG_2010 SEPT_2010 OCT_2010 NOV_2010

1239 1242 1210 1373 1373 1317 1399 1438 1521 1521 1521 1521
 



VEHICLE SAFETY 2 1 1 1

Hamilton C

Description January February March April
Reconciliation Status Final Final Final Final

Medicaid Trips 17,750 19,026 22,085 20,789
Medicaid Payment $604,565.00 $648,025.56 $752,215.10 $708,073.34
Children's Services Trips 0 30 20 8
Children's Services Payment $0.00 $1,021.80 $681.20 $272.48
Pregnancy Related Services Trips 486 471 502 505
Pregnancy Related Services Payment $16,553.16 $16,042.26 $17,098.12 $17,200.30

Completed Trips 18,236 19,527 22,607 21,302
Total Payment $621,118.16 $665,089.62 $769,994.42 $725,546.12

Phone Statistic Description January February March April
Average Speed of Answer 72.2 59.8 61.6 62.6
Calls Abandoned 359 352 312 215
Calls Answered 2,833 2,813 2,756 2,534
Calls Offered 3,192 3,165 3,068 2,749

Complaints Description January February March April
DRIVER - APPEARANCE / ODOR 0 0 1 0
DRIVER - BEHAVIOR 2 11 1 1
DRIVER - SERVICE / DELIVERY 1 0 1 3
DRIVER - SPEED / SAFETY 0 0 2 0
INTERNAL COMPLAINT - STAFF / SERVICE 2 0 1 0
INTERNAL COMPLAINT - TRIP ACCURACY 0 0 1 0
PROVIDER - EARLY 0 0 1 0
PROVIDER - LATE 4 7 7 13
PROVIDER - NO SHOW 8 2 0 16
PROVIDER - SERVICE QUALITY 0 0 2 2

VEHICLE - APPEARANCE / ODOR 1 0 0 0

VEHICLE - SAFETY  2 1 1 1

Grand Total 20 21 18 36



C

0 0 0 0 0 0

ounty Jobs and Family Services 2011 Report

May June July August September October
Final Final Final Final Final Final

21,114 18,847 18,234 19,563 19,932
$719,142.84 $641,928.82 $621,050.04 $666,315.78 $678,883.92 $0.00

0 2 2 4 0
$0.00 $68.12 $68.12 $136.24 $0.00 $0.00

591 556 381 515 537
$20,129.46 $18,937.36 $12,976.86 $17,540.90 $18,290.22 $0.00

21,705 19,405 18,617 20,082 20,469 0
$739,272.30 $660,934.30 $634,095.02 $683,992.92 $697,174.14 $0.00

May June July August September October
35.6 37.0 47.7 50.1 40.7 34.8
131 219 196 293 200 144

2,536 2,763 2621 3216 2,973 2,722
2,667 2,982 2,817 3509 3173 2,866

May June July August September October
0 0 0 0 0 0
4 1 0 1 4 4
1 0 0 4 2 2
0 1 1 0 1 5
1 0 0 1 0 0
0 0 0 0 2 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
7 6 6 15 9 18
7 13 9 17 7 8
2 2 1 2 1 0
0 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

22 23 17 40 27 37
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November December YTD
Preliminary Preliminary

177,340
$0.00 $0.00 $6,040,200.40

66
$0.00 $0.00 $2,247.96

4,544
$0.00 $0.00 $154,768.64

0 0 181,950
$0.00 $0.00 $6,197,217.00

November December YTD
50.3

0 0 2,421
27,767
30,188

November December YTD
1
29
14
10
5
3
1
92
87
12
2
5

0 0 261



















































































NET_PRSCount 
JAN_2011 FEB_2011 MAR_2011 APR_2011 MAY_2011 JUN_2011 JUL_2011 AUG_2011 SEP_2011 OCT_2011 NOV_2011 DEC_2010

27925 29709 31237 30858 29257 30887 24654 31751 29403 30074 21708 28030
 



Latest 12 month period  

Month/Year Transportation Provider Completed Trips

October 2010 Meda‐Care 7391

October 2010 Ride Right 9585

October 2010 Wheels to Go 2691

November 2010 Meda‐Care 6914

November 2010 Ride Right 8957

November 2010 Wheels to Go 2615

December 2010 Meda‐Care 7143

December 2010 Ride Right 6402

December 2010 Wheels to Go 2893

January 2011 Meda‐Care 7349

January 2011 Ride Right 8104

January 2011 Wheels to Go 2783

February 2011 Meda‐Care 7372

February 2011 Ride Right 9594

February 2011 Wheels to Go 2561

March 2011 Meda‐Care 8608

March 2011 Ride Right 10919

March 2011 Wheels to Go 3080

April 2011 Meda‐Care 8051

April 2011 Ride Right 10212

April 2011 Wheels to Go 3039

May 2011 Meda‐Care 8184

May 2011 Ride Right 10478

May 2011 Wheels to Go 3044

June 2011 Meda‐Care 8187

June 2011 Ride Right 8020

June 2011 Wheels to Go 3198

July 2011 Meda‐Care 7599

July 2011 Ride Right 7719

July 2011 Wheels to Go 3300

August 2011 Meda‐Care 9179

August 2011 Ride Right 7203

August 2011 Wheels to Go 3702

September 2011 Meda‐Care 8277

September 2011 Ride Right 8318



Month/Year Transportation Provider Completed Trips

September 2011 Wheels to Go 3876

 



2010 Grand Caravan SE EYB 2974

DATE YEAR MAKE MODEL Plate #
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYB-2601
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYB-2602
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5532
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5535
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5537
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5545
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5539
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5544
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5538
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5534
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5533
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5547
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYR-5536
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYB-2972
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYN-4551
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYB-2973
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYN-4759
10/28/1010/28/10 2010 DodgeDodge Grand Caravan SE  EYB-2974
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYN-4761
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYN-4550
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EYN-4552
10/28/10 2010 Ford Fusion SE EYR-7764
10/28/10 2010 Ford Fusion SE EYR-7638
10/28/10 2010 Ford Fusion SE EYR-7679
10/28/10 2010 Ford Fusion SE EYR-7675
10/28/10 2010 Ford Fusion SE EYR-7637
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9613
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9617
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9618
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9616
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9817
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9619



2010 Grand Caravan SE FBU 9614

10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9816
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBV-1037
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9814
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9612
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9815
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5649
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5651
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5652
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5654
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5650
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5653
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZB-5702
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9615
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9624
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9620
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9813
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9812
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9623
10/28/1010/28/10 2010 DodgeDodge Grand Caravan SE  FBU-9614
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9621
10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE FBU-9622
10/28/10 2010 Chrysler Town & Country DHV-8540
08/04/11 2011 KIA Sedona RMG-931

10/28/10 2010 Dodge Grand Caravan SE EZL-2043
04/29/11 2010 Chrysler Town & Country XGY-7636
05/05/11 2010 Chrysler Town & Country CCQ-6404
10/28/10 2010 Chrysler Town & Country L283112
10/28/10 2010 Chrysler Town & Country FCS-7213
05/10/11 2010 Chrysler Town & Country ESY-2099
05/10/11 2010 Chrysler Town & Country DQH-4011
8/23/2011 2002 Chevrolet Venture 1GNDX03E02D312195
8/23/2011 2008 Chevrolet Uplander LS 1GNDU23118D133061
8/23/2011 2008 Chevrolet Uplander LS 1GNDU23188D133090



8/23/2011 2009 Kia Sedona KNDUP131926321543

8/23/2011 2007 Chevrolet Uplander LS 1GNDU23117D125069
8/23/2011 2008 Chevrolet Uplander LS 1GNDV23W88D111728
8/23/2011 2008 Chevrolet Uplander LS 1GNDV23W98D185711
8/23/2011 2007 Chrysler Town & Country 1A4GJ45R37B214306
8/23/2011 2006 Chrysler Town & Country 1A4GP45R66B745805
8/23/2011 2007 Chrysler Town & Country 1A4GJ45R97B120267
8/23/2011 2003 Chrysler Town & Country 2C4GP24R43R272706
8/23/2011 2006 Chrysler Town & Country 2A4GP54L96R626960`
8/23/2011 2005 Chrysler Town & Country 2C4GP44R35R567892
8/23/2011 2004 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP45RX4B508398
8/23/2011 2007 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP25B47B153448
8/23/2011 2005 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP45R45B351288
8/25/2011 2006 Dodge Caravan 2D4GP44L66R606491
8/23/2011 2006 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP45R86B759696
8/23/2011 2006 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP25B76B503606
8/23/2011 2004 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP24R44B507107
8/23/2011 2005 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP25R25B395150
8/23/2011 2005 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP24R55B177978
8/23/2011 2006 Dodge Caravan 2D4GP44L76R800351
8/23/2011 2005 Dodge Caravan 1D4GP45R25B258088
8/23/2011 2009 Kia Sedona KNDUP131926321543
8/23/2011 2008 Kia Sedona KNDMB233286194309
8/23/2011 2008 Kia Sedona KNDMB233086219076
8/23/2011 2008 Kia Sedona KNDMB233286195394
8/23/2011 2005 Kia Sedona KNDUP132056698212
8/23/2011 2007 Nissan Quest 5NIBV28U67N107785
8/23/2011 2004 Nissan Quest 5N1BV28U24N320079
8/23/2011 2004 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W84HB39317
8/23/2011 2005 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W45HB44645
8/23/2011 2006 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNS24L86HA48274
8/23/2011 2006 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W16DA36007
8/23/2011 2006 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W66DB14829
8/23/2011 2007 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W07DA07664
8/23/2011 2008 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE14W48DA35723
8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24L09DA26904
8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W69DA50196



8/23/2011 1997 Lexus ES 300 JT8BF22G9V5012802

8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W49DA52898
8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W49DA83374
8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W79DA83370
8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTSS34L19DA67186
8/23/2011 2009 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W79DA83403
8/23/2011 2002 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24L72HB07348
8/23/2011 2005 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE24W25HB44630
8/23/2011 2008 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE14W28DA22940
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNS2EW4ADA49060
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNS2EW6ADA49059
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNS2EW4ADA49058
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNS2EW6ADA78382
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNS2EW8ADA78383
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW3ADA99648
8/23/2011 2010 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW9ADA99654
8/23/2011 2011 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW1BDA29101
8/23/2011 2011 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW0BDA29106
8/23/2011 2011 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW9BDA62069
8/23/2011 2011 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW3BDA62066
8/23/2011 2011 Ford Econoline E250 1FTNE2EW1BDA62065
8/23/2011 1997 Lexus ES 300 JT8BF22G9V5012802
8/25/2011 2008 Nissan Versa 3N1BC13E18L410305
8/23/2011 2006 Nissan Altima 1N4AL11D56N359316
8/23/2011 2002 Toyota Camry 4T1BE32K82U528063
8/23/2011 2003 Toyota Camry JTDBE32K930157766
8/23/2011 2003 Toyota Camry 4T1BE32K93U643580
8/23/2011 2003 Toyota Corolla 2T1BR32E63CO84165
8/23/2011 1999 Toyota Avalon 4T1BF18B8XU334651
8/23/2011 2006 Toyota Corolla JTDBR32E560069087
8/23/2011 2005 Toyota Camry 4T1BE32K95U609819
8/23/2011 2008 Toyota Camry 2T1BR32EX8C874172
8/23/2011 2007 Toyota Corolla 2T1BR32EX7C843311
8/23/2011 2005 Toyota Corolla 1NXBR32EX5Z462022
8/23/2011 2005 Toyota Camry 4T1BE32K25U638952
8/23/2011 2005 Toyota Camry 4T1BE32K05U388269
8/23/2011 2006 Toyota Camry 4T1BF32K16U635636



y y

8/23/2011 2007 Toyota Camry 4T1BE46K27U666074
8/23/2011 2007 Toyota Camry 4T1BE46K27U677463
8/23/2011 2007 Toyota Camry 4TIBE46K17U155648
8/23/2011 2002 Toyota Camry 4T1BE32K53U768818
8/23/2011 2006 Toyota Scion JTLKT334764078278
8/23/2011 2006 Toyota Corolla JTDBR32E5600069087

2003 Ford Taurus 1FAFP53U33G238024
2003 Ford Taurus 1FAFP53U53A251599
2002 Ford Taurus 1FAFP55U92A177616
2001 Ford Taurus 1FAFP55541G129323
1998 Toyota Avalon 4T18F18BXWU239068
1997 Ford Taurus 1FALP52U9VA224686
1994 Toyota Camry 4T1SK12EXRU348603
1994 Toyota Camry 4T1SK12E1RU444569
1995 Toyota Camry 4T1SK12E15SU584868
1998 Chevrolet Malibu  LS 1G1NE52M2W6194226
1993 Toyota Camry 4T1SK12E0RU416391
1994 Toyota Camry JT2SK12E3N0096093
1995 Toyota Camry 4T1SK12E2SU882782
1996 Toyota Camry 4T1BG12K4TU944997
1999 Toyota Corolla 1NXBR12E3X2167397
2008 Chevrolet Express  (VAN) 1G8DV13W58D209722
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